Uldaho Law

## Digital Commons @ Uldaho Law

---

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

---

6-22-2018

### Kern v. Idaho Transportation Department Appellant's Brief Dckt. 45798

## I. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

### A. Nature of the Case.

This case involves both the commercial and basic automobile license suspensions of Appellee/Petitioner Thad Eugene Kern (“Kern”) following a DUI.<sup>1</sup> Kern unsuccessfully challenged his suspension to the Idaho Department of Transportation (“Department”) in an administrative hearing and then filed for judicial review by the Twin Falls County District Court (“District Court”). The District Court vacated the suspension and the Department appeals.

### B. Course of Proceedings.

On January 3, 2017, the Department issued a Notice of Suspension (“Notice”), suspending Kern’s CDL privileges for one year and his remaining driving privileges for ninety (90) days. R. p. 1-4. Kern requested a hearing on March 2, 2017. *Id.* at 68. A hearing was held on March 16, 2017. *Id.* The hearing officer, David J. Baumann (“Hearing Officer”), upheld the suspension on April 7, 2017. *Id.* at 104. Kern filed a Petition for Judicial Review on May 5, 2017. *Id.* at 146. The District Court vacated the license suspensions. *Id.* at 261.

### C. Statement of Facts.

On December 28, 2016, at about 12:35 P.M., Twin Falls County Deputy Matthew White (“White”) was dispatched to a “Reckless Driver that turned into a motor vehicle accident.” *Id.* Upon arrival at the scene, White observed a vehicle off the side of the road that appeared to have traveled off the roadway and into a fence. *Id.* White made contact with the driver, Kern, wherein White immediately observed that Kern was very slow in responding to White’s questions. *Id.*

---

<sup>1</sup> The license suspension cases were consolidated into one case, Case No. 45798. The ALS Hearing Officer only made a determination on the Class D license suspension. There was not a hearing on the CDL license suspension. Rather, a stipulation was later entered to bifurcate, wherein the CDL license was suspended as a result of the ALS hearing. Essentially, even though the Hearing Officer only ruled on the Class D license suspension, both licenses were suspended as a result of the hearing. Thus, hereinafter the Hearing Officer’s determinations apply to both license suspensions.

White observed that Kern had a very hard time removing his driver's license from his wallet. *Id.*

White asked Kern if he had been drinking to which Kern responded, "Yes, I had two earlier." *Id.* White then asked Kern if he had taken any prescription medications, to which Kern responded that he had taken around 4 - 5 OxyContin, 4 Soma, and 2 MS Contin. *Id.* at 236-237. White called for a second unit and advised Kern that he would administer the Standardized Field Sobriety Tests. *Id.* at 237. When Kern exited the vehicle, White observed that Kern had difficulty keeping his balance. *Id.* Kern then fell to the ground as he exited the vehicle. *Id.*

White attempted to administer the Horizontal Gaze Nystagmus test. *Id.* However, White stopped the tests out of concerns for Kern's safety as Kern was unstable and unbalanced. *Id.* White placed Kern under arrest and transported him to the Twin Falls County Jail. *Id.* At the jail, White administered the Breathalyzer Test, which produced a Blood Alcohol Level of zero. *Id.* Because Kern admitted to taking prescription drugs, White obtained Kern's permission and administered a blood draw. *Id.* During these interactions between Kern and White, White noted that Kern had slurred speech, impaired memory, and glassy/bloodshot eyes. *Id.*

The blood draw results revealed the presence of Carisoprodol, Meprobamate, and Oxycodone in Kern's blood. *Id.* Carisoprodol is a muscle-relaxer known to cause drowsiness. *Id.* Meprobamate is a tranquilizer used to treat anxiety disorders or to provide short-term relief of anxiety. *Id.* Oxycodone is an opioid pain reliever, and patients are warned that taking Oxycodone with muscle relaxants or tranquilizers "may increase the risk of serious or life-threatening problems, sedation, or coma." *Id.* at 237-238. Further, all three medications have warnings advising patients not to drive until they know how the medication affects them. *Id.*

At the administrative hearing, Kern testified that he took the pain medications because has nerve damage. *Id.* at 238. He further stated that he had been taking pain medications for about

eight years, but had not noticed any impairment as a result of the medications. *Id.* However, Kern did not provide any evidence to dispel the observations of White, including Kern's (1) slow response to White's questions, (2) bloodshot eyes, (3) slurred speech, (4) slow speech, (5) unsteady balance which caused him to fall to the ground, and (6) impaired memory.

Kern submitted video footage of him at the jail. *Id.* at 239. The video displays Kern having delayed responses and slow speech (13:36 mark); balance/coordination issues (13:43 mark); dexterity issues (13:45 mark); slurred speech (13:51 mark); and an admission of taking the drugs, accompanied with both difficulty recalling and slow/slurred speech (14:04-05 mark). *Id.* In a shorter video submitted by Kern (Exhibit H), Kern had balance/coordination issues when he was asked to raise one foot (15:18 mark). *Id.* at 238.

At the administrative hearing, the Hearing Officer issued his Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Order thereby upholding the license suspension. *Id.* at 103-04. There were only two issues raised by Kern: (1) whether White had legal cause to request the evidentiary testing and (2) whether Kern was properly informed of the consequences to submitting to the evidentiary testing. *Id.* at 94. Nonetheless, the Hearing Officer also made a determination on the Idaho Code section 18-8002A(7) issues: (1) whether the officer had legal cause to stop the vehicle; (2) whether the officer had legal cause to believe the driver was under the influence of drugs; (3) whether the test results showed the presence of drugs; (4) whether the evidentiary test was performed in compliance with Idaho Code sections 18-8004, 18-8004C, and 18-8006; (5) whether the evidentiary testing instrument functioned properly; and (6) whether the driver was advised of the consequences of submitting to the evidentiary test. *Id.* at 95-96.

The Hearing Officer identified that Kern had the burden of proof by a preponderance of evidence regarding the Idaho Code section 18-8002A license suspensions. *Id.* at 95. The Hearing

Officer looked at three categories of evidence: the presence of drugs, Kern's driving pattern, and "competent evidence of Kern's impairment caused by the drugs." *Id.* at 96. Each 18-8002A issue was then evaluated by the Hearing Officer.

First, the Hearing Officer held that the police officer had legal cause to stop and contact Kern. *Id.* at 95. The police officer was dispatched to a vehicle crash wherein Kern had traveled off the roadway and into a fence. *Id.* at 96. As such, the police officer was performing his duties as a law enforcement officer when he interacted with Kern. *Id.*

Next, the Hearing Officer held that the police officer had legal cause to believe Kern was driving while under the influence of intoxicating drugs. *Id.* at 99. There was competent evidence that Kern was impaired, such as bloodshot eyes, slow to speak, difficulty walking, and the admission that Kern had taken intoxicating drugs. *Id.* at 97. The Hearing Officer weighed all the evidence and considering "Kern presented no evidence that the drugs at issue were not intoxicating drugs," held that this element was met. *Id.* at 99.

Further, the Hearing Officer held that Kern failed the evidentiary test. *Id.* at 100. Kern submitted to the evidentiary blood test when requested by White. *Id.* at 100-01. The test revealed that Kern was intoxicated with Carisoprodol, Meprobamate, and Oxycodone. *Id.* at 101. The Hearing Officer also held that the evidentiary test was conducted in accordance with the Idaho Code sections 18-8003, 18-8004(4), and the IDAPA Rules as Kern submitted to the test and it was conducted properly at St. Luke's Magic Valley Hospital. *Id.* at 101-02.

Finally, the Hearing Officer held that Kern was properly advised of the consequences of the evidentiary test. *Id.* At jail and prior to the evidentiary test, the police officer played the audio recording of the Administrative License Suspension advisory. *Id.* at 100. The Hearing Officer weighed testimony and evidence regarding the advisory and made a determination that the audio



recording was sufficient to give Kern a proper warning of the evidentiary test. *Id.* at 102. As such, the Hearing Officer correctly held that the police officer followed and procedures to satisfy the requirements for the evidentiary test. *Id.* at 103.

On January 19, 2018, the District Court overturned this finding and held that the accident occurred as a result of Kern's distracted driving. *Id.* at 261. The court emphasized that the State was required to prove at the administrative hearing that the accident was caused by drugs per Idaho Code section 18-8004. *Id.* at 259-260. As such, the court made an inquiry into whether there was substantial and competent evidence on the record that showed Kern's ability to drive was impaired by drugs. *Id.* at 260.

The court found that there was competent evidence which existed to show that Kern was not driving in violation of Idaho Code section 18-8004. *Id.* at 260. The court reasoned that Kern never admitted to taking the drugs before driving that night. *Id.* Further, the court reasoned that Kern was "walking well, and that his responses [w]ere appropriate and in context." *Id.* Although the court recognized that Kern's "speech is a bit slurred, and his cognition may be somewhat slow," it held that the evidence was insufficient to show that Kern was impaired. *Id.*

According to the District Court, the "accident was caused by texting while driving, the scene was very slick and snowy, the temperature was cold, and the amount of traffic . . . led to the abandonment of the sobriety tests." *Id.* at 261. Ultimately, the District Court held that the Department did not present substantial and competent evidence showing that Kern was impaired. *Id.* Therefore, the District Court reversed license suspensions. *Id.*

## II. STANDARD OF REVIEW

The Idaho Administrative Procedures Act (IDAPA) governs the review of department decisions to deny, cancel, suspend, disqualify, revoke or restrict a person's driver's license. *See*

Idaho Code sections 49-201, 49-330, 67-5201(2), 67-5270; *See also In re Suspension of Driver's License of Gibbar*, 143 Idaho 937, 941, 155 P.3d 1176, 1180 (Idaho App. Ct. 2006). An administrative driver's license suspension "is a civil penalty separate and apart from any other suspension imposed for a violation of other Idaho motor vehicle codes or for a conviction of an offense." *In re Bowman*, 135 Idaho 843, 845, 25 P.3d 866, 868 (Idaho App. Ct. 2001). "In an appeal from the decision of the district court acting in its appellate capacity under IDAPA, [the appellate court] reviews the agency record independently of the district court's decision." *State Transp. Dept. v. Kalani-Keegan*, 155 Idaho 297, 300, 311 P.3d 309, 312 (Idaho 2013). A court may overturn an agency's decision only when the agency's findings, inferences, conclusions, or decisions: (a) violate statutory or constitutional provisions; (b) exceed the agency's statutory authority; (c) are made upon unlawful procedure; (d) are not supported by substantial and competent evidence in the record; or (e) are arbitrary, capricious, or an abuse of discretion. Idaho Code section 67-5279(3). The party challenging the agency decision must demonstrate that the agency erred in a manner specified in Idaho Code section 67-5279(3) and that a substantial right of that party has been prejudiced. *Price v. Payette County Bd. of County Comm'rs*, 131 Idaho 426, 429, 958 P.2d 583, 586 (Idaho 1998); *See also In re Marshall*, 137 Idaho 337, 340, 48 P.3d 666, 669 (Idaho App. Ct. 2002), *In re Beyer*, 155 Idaho 40, 44, 304 P.3d 1206, 1210 (Idaho App. Ct. 2013).

### **III. LAW AND ARGUMENT**

It is the Department's position that this Court should overturn the holding by the District Court to vacate the license suspensions. This Court has authority to overturn the decision of the District Court since that court exceeded its statutory authority. Idaho Code section 67-5279(3)(b). Because the District Court exceeded its authority and as there was substantial and competent evidence that

Kern was impaired by intoxicating drugs, this Court should uphold the decision of the Hearing Officer.

A. **THE DISTRICT COURT EXCEEDED THE SCOPE OF ITS AUTHORITY WHEN IT APPLIED THE INCORRECT STATUTE.**

Respectfully, the District Court incorrectly overturned the decision of the Hearing Officer upholding the suspension of the driver's licenses. First, the District Court applied the wrong statute. As a result of applying the wrong statute, the District Court incorrectly placed a higher burden of proof on the Department. Finally, the District Court made additional factual findings without cause. Thus, the District Court exceeded its scope of authority in its holding.

- i. *The District Court misapplied the criminal statute to the license suspension hearing thereby placing the incorrect burden on the Department.*

In Idaho, a motorist may both be criminally charged with driving under the influence of intoxicating drugs under Idaho Code section 18-8004 and, in a separate action, have his license suspended under Idaho Code section 18-8002A. *State v. Reichenberg*, 128 Idaho 452, 456, 915 P.2d 14, 18 (Idaho 1996). Under Idaho Code section 18-8004, a motorist will be criminally convicted if the Department can prove beyond a reasonable doubt that the motorist's impairment was caused by intoxicating drugs. *State v. Stark*, 157 Idaho 29, 31, 333 P.3d 844, 846 (Idaho App. Ct. 2013). Alternatively, under Idaho Code section 18-8002A, a motorist will have his license suspended if he fails the evidentiary test outlined in Idaho Code section 18-8004. *Bowman*, 135 Idaho at 868-69, 25 P.3d at 843-44 (Idaho App. Ct. 2001).

Should a motorist fail the evidentiary test as defined in Idaho Code section 18-8004, the motorist may challenge the suspension by requesting a hearing. Idaho Code section 18-8002A(2)(b). The person requesting the hearing must prove by a preponderance of the evidence that the license suspension was invalid. Idaho Code section 18-8002A(7). Although the

evidentiary test is defined in 18-8004, the facts found by the hearing officer regarding the 18-8002A suspension must be found on independent grounds, unrelated to an 18-8004 criminal hearing (if any). *Reichenberg*, 128 Idaho at 457-58, 915 P.2d at 19 (Idaho 1996). Therefore, there is a distinct and separate charge for both license suspensions under 18-8002A and a criminal charge under 18-8004. *Bowman*, 135 Idaho at 846-47, 25 P.3d at 869-70 (Idaho App. Ct. 2001).

In this case, the District Court incorrectly applied the Idaho Code section 18-8004 criminal statute to the license suspension hearing. The District Court held that there was no “substantial or competent evidence on the record as a whole showing that Kern was impaired by drugs in violation of IC 18-8004.” R. p. 261. The District Court reasoned that “[c]ontrary to the hearing officer’s findings . . . the officer did not have a legal basis to believe that Kern was driving in violation of IC 18-8004.” *Id.* at 260. Further, the District Court reasoned that “[f]or purposes of 18-8004, the state must also ‘prove that the impairment was caused by . . . drugs[.]’” *Id.* at 260 (quoting *Stark*, 157 Idaho at 31, 333 P.3d at 846 (Idaho 2013)).<sup>2</sup> As such, the court held that “[w]ithout substantial evidence showing that Kern’s impairment was caused by drugs, the license suspension and disqualification cannot stand.” *Id.*

Essentially, the District Court held that the Department did not satisfy its burden at the administrative hearing. However, by applying Idaho Code section 18-8004 the court both placed the burden on the wrong party and required a higher burden. At the administrative hearing, it was Kern’s burden to prove by a preponderance of evidence that the license suspension was invalid. The District Court held the Department to the higher burden in Idaho Code section 18-8004

---

<sup>2</sup> It is important to distinguish that this case was a DUI criminal conviction under Idaho Code section 18-8004 and not an 18-8002A license suspension case.

when instead it should have placed the burden on Kern to challenge the license suspension. The court provides no evidence that it found Kern fulfilled his burden. As a result of the District Court incorrectly placing a higher burden on the Department, the court exceeded its scope of authority when it challenged Hearing Officer's determination. Therefore, the District Court's holding should be vacated.

ii. *The District Court relied on facts not at issue in the case when it made additional fact finding.*

The District Court exceeded its authority by making factual determinations outside the scope of the case. A district court cannot substitute its judgment for that of the agency as to the weight of the evidence presented. Idaho Code section 67-5279(1). A court may overturn an agency's decision when the agency's findings are not supported by substantial and competent evidence in the record.<sup>3</sup> Idaho Code section 67-5279(3)(d). An agency's factual determinations are binding on the reviewing court insofar as the determinations are supported by substantial and competent evidence in the record. *Gibbar*, 143 Idaho at 941, 155 P.3d at 1180. Thus, the agency's factual determinations are binding on the district court unless the findings of fact are clearly erroneous. *Id.* In this case, because the District Court relied on the wrong statute it made additional fact findings without authority.

Here, the District Court held that the Hearing Officer's "determination [w]as not supported by substantial and competent evidence" showing that Kern's impairment was caused by drugs in violation of Idaho Code section 18-8004. The District Court reasoned that the

---

<sup>3</sup> There are five reasons why a court may overturn an agency's decision: (1) a violation of statutory or constitutional provisions, (2) the agency exceeded its statutory authority, (3) the agency made a decision upon unlawful procedure, (4) the decision was not supported by substantial and competent evidence, or (5) the decision was arbitrary or capricious. In this case, the District Court made its determination based on IC 67-5279(3)(d). As such, the other factors are not discussed here.

“accident was caused by texting while driving.” R. p. 261. The court also made additional findings outside of the administrative hearing such as the slick conditions of the road, the cold temperatures, and the amount of traffic that led to the cause of the accident. *Id.* As stated above, the District Court relied on a criminal statute which required a higher burden of proof on the Department and for causation to be proved. As a result, the District Court challenged the facts made by the Hearing Officer without statutory authority. Further, the additional facts found by the court are irrelevant to this case.

Causation need not be proven pursuant to Idaho Code section 18-8002A since it is not a criminal statute. Rather, pursuant to Idaho Code section 18-8002(A) the only relevant fact in this case was whether Kern’s driving was impaired because of intoxicating drugs. In other words, the actual cause of the accident is irrelevant here as Kern’s license was suspended because he was driving while intoxicated, not because he caused an accident.

The Hearing Officer weighed the evidence and held that there were intoxicating drugs in Kern’s systems. As such, the District Court should not have challenged the Hearing Officer’s findings. It was proven at the agency hearing that Kern failed the evidentiary test, which is all that Idaho Code section 18-8002A required. Thus, the license suspensions should be reinstated since the District Court incorrectly challenged the fact finder’s determinations and since it relied on irrelevant facts.

**B. THE HEARING OFFICER CORRECTLY AFFIRMED KERN’S LICENSE SUSPENSIONS.**

The Hearing Officer correctly held that Kern’s licenses were to remain suspended. On appeal, Kern essentially argued that he had a valid prescription and did not feel impaired and for those reasons, the Hearing Officer should have vacated the suspension. Respectfully, this Court

should reinstate Kern's suspensions since Kern failed to meet his burden of proof and since the Hearing Officer's finding of facts were supported by substantial and competent facts.

*i. Kern did not meet his burden of proof at the administrative hearing.*

At an agency hearing, the petitioner carries the burden of proof by a preponderance of the evidence to challenge the license suspension standards in Idaho Code section 18-8002A. *Beyer*, 155 Idaho at 43, 304 P.3d at 1209. A hearing officer cannot vacate the license suspension unless the petitioner proves that (1) the police officer did not have legal cause to make the stop, (2) the police officer did not have legal cause to believe the motorist was driving under the influence of intoxicating drugs, (3) the evidentiary test results did not show a violation of Idaho Code section 18-8004, (4) the evidentiary test was not conducted properly under 18-8004, or (5) the motorist was not informed of the consequences of the evidentiary test. *Id.* The hearing officer must make a finding of fact to each of these issues. Idaho Code section 18-8005(7). Therefore, the petitioner must prove one of those bases in order to vacate the suspension.

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