Uldaho Law

Digital Commons @ Uldaho Law

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

7-26-2018

Kern v. Idaho Transportation Department Respondent's Brief Dckt. 45798

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

ARGUMENT

A. Standard of Review

The Idaho Administrative Procedures Act (IDAPA) governs the review of ITD decisions to deny, cancel, suspend, disqualify, revoke, or restrict a person's driver's license. *See* I.C. §§ 49-201, 49-330, 67-5201(2), 67-5270. In an appeal from the decision of the district court acting in its appellate capacity under the IDAPA, this Court reviews the agency record independently of the district court's decision. *Marshall v. Idaho Dep't of Transp.*, 137 Idaho 337, 340, 48 P.3d 666, 669 (Ct. App. 2002). This Court does not substitute its judgment for that of the agency as to the weight of the evidence presented. I.C. § 67-5279(1); *Marshall*, 137 Idaho at 340, 48 P.3d at 669. This Court instead defers to the agency's findings of fact unless they are clearly erroneous. *Castaneda v. Brighton Corp.*, 130 Idaho 923, 926, 950 P.2d 1262, 1265 (1998); *Marshall*, 137 Idaho at 340, 48 P.3d at 669. In other words, the agency's factual determinations are binding upon the reviewing court, even where there is conflicting evidence before the agency, so long as the determinations are supported by substantial and competent evidence in the record. *Urrutia v. Blaine Cnty., ex rel. Bd. of Comm'rs*, 134 Idaho 353, 357, 2 P.3d 738, 742 (2000); *Marshall*, 137 Idaho at 340, 48 P.3d at 669. The Court may overturn an agency's decision where its findings, inferences, conclusions, or decisions violate statutory or constitutional provisions; exceed the agency's statutory authority; are made upon unlawful procedure; are not supported by substantial evidence in the record; or are arbitrary, capricious, or an abuse of discretion. I.C. § 67-5279(3). The party challenging the agency decision must demonstrate that the agency erred in a manner

specified in I.C. § 67-5279(3) and that a substantial right of that party has been prejudiced. *Price v. Payette Cnty. Bd. of Cnty. Comm'rs*, 131 Idaho 426, 429, 958 P.2d 583, 586 (1998); *Marshall*, 137 Idaho at 340, 48 P.3d at 669. If the agency's decision is not affirmed on appeal, it shall be set aside and remanded for further proceedings as necessary. I.C. § 67-5279(3).

B. The Department failed to adequately consider mitigating evidence and the Suspensions are not supported by substantial evidence on the record as a whole.

Kern contends that the Department's findings were not supported by substantial evidence on the record as a whole—particularly in light of the mitigating evidence presented to rebut the Department's position. “Substantial and competent evidence is relevant evidence that a reasonable mind might accept to support a conclusion.” *Watson v. Joslin Millwork, Inc.*, 149 Idaho 850, 854, 243 P.3d 666, 670 (2010).

In cases involving prescription medication as opposed to alcohol, there is no quantitative limit that must be established. *Feasel v. Idaho Transp. Dept.*, 148 Idaho 312, 222 P.3d 480 (Ct. App. 2009). However, there must be evidence that the subject had drugs in his system which may cause impairment and that such medication actually caused intoxication and consequently impaired the subject's ability to drive safely. *See id.* (emphasis added). In other words, it is insufficient just to show that the drugs were present, there must be evidence of impairment. This is the standard for driver's license suspension, not criminal DUI.

On appeal, the Department incorrectly asserts that the District Court impermissibly shifted the burden of the license suspension proceeding to the State. That is not the case. The District Court properly observed that, in order to suspend Kern's license, our appellate courts

have held that there must be (1) presence of drugs and (2) impairment – without which, the license cannot be administratively suspended. With no threshold requirement of drugs in a person’s system, this is the only barrier protecting citizens from an overreaching administrative agency. In this day and age of litigation, many medications offer some protective caveat for the manufacturer stating that a drug may cause drowsiness. Since the Department simply relies on the drug facts provided by the manufacturers to prove a substance’s intoxicating ability, that would make many people guilty of DUI throughout the State and primed for administrative license suspension. Even for medications known to cause drowsiness, the effect of the medications is different from individual to individual—which is presumably why there is no numerical threshold for impairment. Instead, impairment must be objectively determined by other substantial and competent evidence. In this case, it is undisputed that Kern had the drugs in his system. However, Kern disputes that he was impaired in the operation of his vehicle.

To establish Kern’s impairment, the Department relied exclusively on the police officer’s *Affidavit of Probable Cause*. That report can be found at pages 36 through 38 of the Clerk’s Record. In the *Affidavit*, the officer reports that:

Upon making contact with Kern I observed him to be very slow in his responses to my questions. I also observed him to have bloodshot eyes and to be talking with a slight slur and very slow and delayed with his speaking. . . . Kern had a very hard time removing his Driver’s License from his wallet. I also was able to get a very faint odor of alcoholic beverage when Kern spoke to me. . . . I had Kern exit his vehicle while doing so Kern had a very hard time keeping his balance and fell to the ground. I then assisted him to the front of my patrol vehicle. . . . The first test that I performed was the Horizontal Gaze Nystagmus. Before beginning the test **I asked Scott [sic]** if he had any problems with his eyes or if he wore contacts which he stated “No”. **I then asked Scott [sic]** to stand with his feet together and his hands at his side. **I observed Scott [sic]** to have a

very hard time walking or to even keep [sic] his balance. Due to safety concerns for Kern I did not complete the SFST's as I was afraid for Mr. Kern's safety.

R. at 37 (emphasis added). Based on that, the officer checked boxes indicating "Yes" for odor of alcoholic beverage, admitted drinking alcoholic beverage, slurred speech, impaired memory, glassy/bloodshot eyes, crash involved and drugs suspected. The officer checked boxes indicating "No" for gaze nystagmus, walk & turn, and one leg stand. However, the officer's narrative never reports his observations during the gaze nystagmus test. Additionally, nothing is ever said of the one leg stand or impaired memory at all. As to the walk & turn test, all we know is that Scott had problems completing the test. There is no Scott involved in this case and it is unknown who that is referring to. Was the officer simply cutting and pasting from another report? No one knows, including the Department. Simply, the *Affidavit* is incomplete and full of inconsistencies and errors. These inconsistencies and errors are enhanced by the officer's questionable accusations regarding the odor of alcohol and Kern having had several drinks, immediately followed by a 0.00/0.00 Breathalyzer result. Clearly, he had a preconceived notion to issue a DUI upon first approaching Kern. After that, all the officer needed to do was create a factual scenario supporting that conclusion. The officer disregards any other explanation as to why Kern may have been slow or unsteady. Namely, having just run off the road and being interrogated by police right off the bat as to whether he had been drinking, in addition to his chronic back pain and instability exacerbated by inclement conditions.

In light of such inconsistencies and errors, it would be helpful to have some evidence supporting the officer's observations. For example, an audio or video recording of the stop.

However, that does not exist. For whatever reason, the officer did not take any. Presumably he had the ability to, but for some reason did not have the audio or video recorder activated, leaving Kern in the logically impossible position of directly disproving the officer's allegations. While there is no case law directly calling this out as an unconstitutional practice, Kern contends that in this day and age that is entirely unacceptable. It strains reason that with such a fact-sensitive determination and the ease and accessibility of recording technology, that the officer in this case failed to take the time to even activate a voice recorder. Nevertheless, the officer did fail to make any other record of the stop and his faulty report is all there is in the record supporting the allegation of impairment. Yet, the level of reliance placed upon the report, evidenced by a review of the Department's initial decision on appeal of the suspension, places an impossible barrier for an aggrieved individual to overcome a suspension.

For his part, Kern does dispute the officer's observations. In opposition to the allegation of impairment, Kern offered his testimony, his medical records, a letter from his treating physician who observes him on a regular basis while on these medications, as well as audio and video footage of Kern's demeanor at the Twin Falls County Jail – all of which belie the officer's allegations of impairment.

In his direct testimony, Kern testified as follows in regard to his history:

Q: Okay. And, then, could you explain to us --- are you on any prescription medications?

A: I am.

Q: How long have you been on those medications?

A: Different medications, for the last eight years – seven, eight years.

Q: And why did you start taking those medications?

A: I had a back injury at work.

....

A: I had two surgeries.

....

A: One was a discectomy where they take – they take the bulged disc out or the ruptured disc out, and they put in, like, a plastic mesh thing to help support it. That didn't work, They had to fuse it.

Q: Okay. And do you have pain, lingering pain, as a result of this injury and surgery?

A: Yes. I have nerve damage.

....

A: In my lower, left back, into my hip. Sometimes it shoots, like a spasming, throbbing down into my leg.

Q: And if you had to rate your pain on a one to ten, how does it feel kind of on a daily basis?

A: It varies from a three or four or up to a nine sometimes.

....

Q: Okay. When you first started taking pain medications, did you notice that the affected you at all?

A: No, not overly. I mean, I took two or three weeks of taking all of them; and I didn't go anywhere at first, just to see how it affected me.

....

Q: Okay. Do you feel that this medication impairs your ability to drive?

A: No, it doesn't.

Q: And what is your profession?

A: Truck driving, equipment operator.

....

Q: Have you ever had an incident where you have run off the road in the past eight years since you have been on pain meds?

A: No.

....

Q: Have you ever had an accident?

A: No.

Q: Over the period of time that you have been on the pain meds, have you been cited for DUI?

A: No.

Aug. R. at 14-17. Then, Kern testified as to the event in question, as follows:

A: To back up to the beginning, I guess, my daughter – well, her car wouldn't start. It was, like, ten below zero outside. She asked me to come help. I got held up at the house.

I finally left and headed over there with jumper cables and stuff, and I was trying to send her a text that I was running late when I run off the road. I got off to the edge, got it with one hand, and I'm looking at my phone, and I got into the snow drift, and it just sucked me into the ditch.

Q: Okay. And then what happened?

A: Well, a cop showed up. He accused me of drinking. I told him I wasn't. He said, "I can smell it. I know you've been drinking."

I said, "No, I haven't."

He said, "I can smell alcohol on your breath."

I said, "Fine. I had one at lunch."

"Let's go blow."

Q: Why did you say you had one at lunch?

A: Because I wanted to get going. I mean, I knew it was going to be zero.

Q: Okay. Do you drink?

A: No.

....

Q: So after the officer said, "You've been drinking; let's go blow," what happened?

A: He also asked me then if I took prescription medication. I told him I did. I told him what I had. He took me in. I blew. It was all zeros. Then he asked me if I would take a blood test.

I told him, "Well, yeah." I don't really have a choice because, if I refuse, then I'm in trouble for that.

I said, "Look. I'm worried about my CDL."

He said, "It won't affect your CDL because you were in your personal car."

So we went to the hospital. I gave blood. We came back and – I don't know. He called my wife – or I called my wife to come and pick me up.

He handed me the paperwork and told me – he thanked me for being cooperative, told me where my pickup was, and told me to be careful leaving there because they knew why I had been arrested. I went and picked up my pickup and drove home.

Q: Okay. And did you perform any roadside tests?

A: One eye test and, like, half of a leg stand before he said it was cold, and I was shivering, and that it was a danger to be on the edge of the road.

Q: So why just half a leg test? So tell the hearing officer what happened and what the circumstances were of the leg test.

A: Well, for one, we were standing right on the edge of the shoulder of the road where the snow is; and I've only got about two or three feet from traffic before we're down in the borrow ditch.

I also stated I couldn't hardly do it because of my back and my leg. And then ... I was shivering and grabbing my arms around myself.

He said, "It isn't safe out here." He said, "Let's go into the jail." \

Aug. R. at 18-21.

Kern's medical records, filed under seal, support Kern's testimony regarding his injuries, his prescribed medications and his level of alertness and cognition under the influence of such medications. These records are buttressed by the opinion of Kern's pain management physician, Dr. Clinton L. Dillé, M.D. who observed as follows:

Mr. Kern is a patient with the Southern Idaho Pain Institute. During our treatment of Mr. Kern, we have prescribed him MS Contin (30 mg), MS Contin (60 mg), Oxycodone (15 mg), Ranitidine (150 mg), and Soma (350 mg). The need for medication stems from an underlying back injury which causes Mr. Kern chronic pain radiating through his back and down his leg. He has been on this medication, at its current dosages, for over a year. In the course of our treatment of Mr. Kern, we examine him at least once a month. At each exam, we evaluate, among other things, his psychiatric condition; i.e. whether he appears to be aware and alert. At times, we also perform simple cognition tests, such as spelling words backwards. While Mr. Kern has been on this medication, at the prescribed dosages, we have consistently observed him to be alert, responsive and cognizant at every examination.

The substances identified above in the laboratory blood test are consistent with the medication which has been prescribed to Mr. Kern. The effect of the medication and the dosages can be different for every person. However, our observation of Mr. Kern does not reveal him to be impaired by the above medications at the prescribed dosages. The prescribed medication is necessary to allow Mr. Kern to function at work and in everyday life. He likely will be on pain medication for the remainder of his life, absent some other resolution of the source of his pain.

R. at 87.

The observations contained in Kern's medical records and those noted by Dr. Dillé, as well as Kern's testimony as to his coordination at the time of the stop, are further supported by

the jail audio and video submitted in the record on DVD. R. at 89-91. If the Court watches that surveillance footage, it will see Kern clearly not falling all over himself as alleged by the *Affidavit of Probable Cause*. Kern is awake, alert, responsive and able to complete all tasks given to him, including walking, standing against the wall, disrobing, etc. At one point, he has some difficulty removing his shoe, which is understandable given his back problems.

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